
















































MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

STONEYBROOK 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 

 A Continued Meeting of the Stoneybrook Community Development District’s Board of 5 

Supervisors was held on Friday, April 15, 2011, at 4:00 p.m., at the Stoneybrook Community 6 

Center, 11800 Stoneybrook Golf Boulevard, Estero, Florida 33928. 7 

 8 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

 10 
Ron Ritschel (via telephone) Chair 11 

Chris Brady Vice Chair 12 

James Boesch (via telephone) Assistant Secretary 13 

Ray Rodrigues Assistant Secretary 14 

Ed Harland Assistant Secretary 15 

 16 

Also present were: 17 

 18 
Chuck Adams (via telephone) District Manager 19 

Cleo Crismond Wrathell, Hunt and Associates, LLC 20 

Charlotte West Golf Pro Screening Committee 21 

John Blakeley Master Board Association 22 

 23 

 24 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 25 
 26 

 Ms. Crismond called the continued meeting to order at 4:00 p.m., and noted, for the 27 

record, that Supervisors Rodrigues, Harland and Brady were present, in person.  Supervisors 28 

Ritschel and Boesch were attending by telephone. 29 

 30 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Golf Pro Resume 31 

Screening Committee Recommendation 32 

of Short List Candidates 33 

 34 

 Ms. Charlotte West, of the Golf Pro Resume Screening Committee, presented the 35 

committee’s findings.  She noted the committee was not in complete agreement with the 36 

requirement of a four (4)-year college degree for the position; however, as the Board established 37 

that as part of the criteria, the committee evaluated the applicants based on that requirement.  The 38 

report indicated 60 candidate applications were received and 24 of those candidates met all of the 39 

Board’s requirements for consideration.  Ms. West indicated, after a thorough review, the 40 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 15, 2011 

 2 

committee unanimously selected three (3) candidates to forward to the CDD Board for 41 

consideration; Robert Biroscak, John Jurkovac and Chuck Kandt.  She noted the committee may 42 

have had other candidates, who may have been equally good or stronger, had the degree 43 

requirement not been in effect. 44 

 Mr. Ritschel voiced his support of eliminating the four (4)-year degree requirement from 45 

the evaluation criteria and allowing the screening committee to further evaluate the candidates.  46 

Mr. Adams explained the advertisement requirements and time frame. 47 

  48 

On MOTION by Mr. Ritschel and seconded by Mr. Boesch, 49 

with all in favor, elimination of the four (4)-year college degree 50 

requirement, review of additional resumes by the screening 51 

committee, and submittal of a shortlist of six (6) to eight (8) 52 

candidates,  was approved. 53 

 54 

 55 

 Discussion ensued regarding when to begin contacting references. 56 

 57 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration/Approval of Key 58 

Informational Items for Shortlist 59 

Candidates to be Prepared to Address as 60 

Part of Interview (to be provided under 61 

separate cover) 62 

 63 

 This item will be discussed at the next regular meeting. 64 

 65 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Set Dates/Time for Candidate 66 

Presentations/Interviews 67 
 68 

 This item will be discussed at the next regular meeting. 69 

 70 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment/Supervisors’ 71 

Requests 72 
 73 

 There being no audience comments or Supervisors’ requests, the next item followed. 74 

 75 

76 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 15, 2011 

 3 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 77 

 78 

 There being no additional business, the meeting adjourned at 4:17 p.m. 79 

 80 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Ritschel, 81 

with all in favor, the meeting adjourned at 4:17 p.m. 82 

83 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 15, 2011 

 4 

 84 

 85 

 86 

 87 

 88 

 89 

 90 

____________________________   ____________________________ 91 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 92 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

STONEYBROOK 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 

 A Regular Meeting of the Stoneybrook Community Development District’s Board of 5 

Supervisors was held on Tuesday, April 26, 2011 at 6:00 p.m., at the Stoneybrook 6 

Community Center, 11800 Stoneybrook Golf Boulevard, Estero, Florida 33928. 7 

 8 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

 10 
Ron Ritschel Chair 11 

Chris Brady Vice Chair 12 

James Boesch  Assistant Secretary 13 

Ray Rodrigues Assistant Secretary 14 

Ed Harland Assistant Secretary 15 

 16 

Also present were: 17 

 18 
Chuck Adams District Manager 19 

Dan Cox (via telephone) District Counsel 20 

Michelle Blackstock (via telephone) Grau & Associates 21 

Matt Nieder Golf Superintendent 22 

Charlotte West Golf Pro Screening Committee 23 

John Blakeley Master Board Association 24 

Santo Listro Resident 25 

Dr. Schwartz Resident 26 

Peter Austin Resident 27 

Josh Ross Assistant Pro 28 

Tricia Blake Merchandise Manager 29 

Lloyd Sebby Resident 30 

Steve Spaugh Golf Course Consultant 31 

Lew Frith Resident 32 

Amanda Miller Resident 33 

Jan _________ Resident 34 

 35 

 36 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 37 
 38 

 Mr. Adams called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m., and noted Supervisors Ritschel, 39 

Brady, Boesch, Rodrigues and Harland were present, in person.   40 

 41 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 2 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation of Audited Financial Report 42 

for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 43 

2010, Prepared by Grau & Associates 44 

 45 

 Mr. Adams introduced Ms. Michelle Blackstock, with Grau & Associates.  Ms. 46 

Blackstock reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report on Pages 1 and 2, noting that it is a clean, 47 

unqualified opinion.  The fourth paragraph, an emphasis of matter paragraph, refers to the 48 

detailed Notes 7, 10, 11 and 15 and brings attention to the nonpayment of the debt service 49 

payments that were due on October 1, 2010.  Ms. Blackstock reviewed the Balance Sheet on 50 

Page 10 that reflects Total Assets of $281,959; which exceed the $17,050 of liabilities and result 51 

in a total fund balance of $264,909.  Ms. Blackstock reviewed the Statement of Revenues, 52 

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, on Page 12, with total revenues of $781,001, 53 

exceeding the total expenditures of $623,534.  She noted the fund balance was increased by 54 

$157,467 of excess revenues.  Ms. Blackstock reviewed Page 13, Statement of Net Assets – 55 

Proprietary Fund, that reflects the golf course and irrigation as two (2) separate funds.  The total 56 

assets were $7,556,417 and total liabilities were $10,291,623, with a deficiency of $2,735,206, 57 

mainly stemming from the golf course deficit of $2,795,898. 58 

 Ms. Blackstock reviewed Page 14, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 59 

Assets for the Proprietary Fund, and noted the operating revenues, of $2,104,449, did not cover 60 

the operating expenses of $2,553,141, resulting in a net operating loss of $448,692.   61 

 Ms. Blackstock stated the Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting is a clean 62 

opinion with no significant deficiencies or control issues.   63 

 Ms. Blackstock reviewed the Management Letter on Page 31 that is issued pursuant to 64 

the Auditor General for the State of Florida.  She discussed the current year finding financial 65 

condition assessment in which the District has an accumulated deficit of $2,735,206 in the 66 

enterprise funds.  She discussed the noncompliance with Series 1998 bond indenture. 67 

Mr. Rodrigues reviewed Note 15, on Page 26, and noted the bondholders violated the 68 

bond indenture on August 24, 2010, prior to the Board’s violation, and it is not recognized.  He 69 

recalled the account was swept in August 2010 but the bond default was not declared until 70 

October 2010.  Mr. Cox recalled that the bondholders did not follow the legal procedures for 71 

freezing the funds.  Mr. Rodrigues noted the Board was responding to the bondholders’ violation 72 

of the indenture and it is not stated in the audit.   73 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 3 

Mr. Cox recommended changing the verbiage to “The Bondholders directed the trustee 74 

to withhold payment of any operating expenses relating to the golf course and not fund the 75 

expenses in order, as required by the Indenture.”  Ms. Blackstock agreed.  Mr. Cox stated he 76 

will provide the wording via email.  Ms. Blackstock noted the wording is also found in Note 11 77 

and Note 11 will be changed, as well.   78 

Mr. Ritschel recalled the proposal to restructure the bond payments that was taken off the 79 

table while the National Golf Foundation reviewed it and that no additional proposals were 80 

received from the bondholders to restructure the bonds.  Mr. Cox confirmed such and that the 81 

bondholders provided no indication of their willingness to restructure the bonds, as reflected in 82 

Note 15.  Ms. Blackstock stated she will make the changes in Notes 15, 11 and in the Auditor’s 83 

Report.  Mr. Ritschel requested Ms. Blackstock review the audit and make the comments 84 

consistent throughout.  Ms. Blackstock confirmed.  85 

On Page 32, Mr. Harland read the last sentence under Observation for 2010-01.  Ms. 86 

Blackstock responded it should read “in a prior year”. 87 

Mr. Harland read the statement found throughout the audit, “The golf course enterprise 88 

fund has not had sufficient funds to make certain debt service payments since October 2007.”  89 

He noted the problems started after 2007, when US Homes stopped funding the shortfall between 90 

bond payments due and funds generated from the golf course operations.  Mr. Rodrigues referred 91 

to prior audits declaring that the District met the definitions for a state of financial emergency 92 

and the District was no longer relying on the developer.   93 

Discussion followed on the inclusion of the statement.  Mr. Harland believed the 94 

inference, from the statement, to be incorrect.  Mr. Cox noted the golf course never generated 95 

sufficient revenue and recommended language explaining that, prior to 2007, the revenue that 96 

was generated had to be subsidized by the developer.  Mr. Adams suggested amending the 97 

existing language to read, “The golf course enterprise fund has never had sufficient funds to 98 

make certain debt service payments”.  Mr. Harland and Ms. Blackstock agreed.  Mr. Harland 99 

noted the statement is found on Page 23, Note 7; Page 25, Note 11; and Page 32, 2010-02, 100 

Observation.  101 

 Mr. Harland and Mr. Rodrigues stated they will email Mr. Cox regarding the verbiage 102 

changes. 103 

 104 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 4 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2011-5, 105 

Accepting the Audited Financial Report 106 

for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 107 

2010 108 

 109 

 Mr. Adams presented Resolution 2011-5 for the Board’s consideration.  110 

 111 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Brady, with 112 

all in favor, Resolution 2011-5, Accepting the Audited 113 

Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 114 

2010, as modified, was approved. 115 

 116 

 117 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of New Copier Lease for Golf 118 

Pro Shop 119 
 120 

 Mr. Adams recalled that a copier at the pro shop had some issues and the new lease 121 

provides for a reduction in costs.  Mr. Ritschel noted the base price is $62.50 for 5,000 copies.  122 

Mr. Adams noted the cost is lower than the prior lease payment amount and under budget.  123 

Discussion followed on the actual cost.  This item was deferred to next month’s agenda.   124 

 125 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Continued Discussion Regarding Head 126 

Pro Hiring 127 

 128 

 Mr. Ritschel recalled that the committee went through 60 candidates.  He discussed the 129 

criteria for candidates to meet.  Mr. Ritschel stated the committee can have a report for the Board 130 

on Thursday, May 5, and the committee is meeting on Monday, May 2.  Mr. Ritschel reviewed 131 

possible questions.  Discussion followed on the established criteria and the how the Board 132 

determined the criteria.   133 

 Mr. Ritschel discussed the Ranger schedule and use of volunteers.  Mr. Boesch noted the 134 

time that Mr. Ritschel puts into the golf course.  Mr. Ritschel discussed the hours worked by the 135 

existing staff and that Josh delayed some of his certification testing.   136 

 Mr. Rodrigues noted his desire to hire a USGA Pro that will bring in new golfers, 137 

including junior golfers, and raise money.  Discussion followed on existing programs throughout 138 

the community, including golfing, fishing, and giving lessons on the golf course.   139 

 Audience Comments 140 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 5 

Dr. Schwartz thanked Mr. Nieder for his work to address drainage and discussed 141 

concerns regarding landscaping aesthetics on Lancaster.  She requested upgrading the 142 

landscaping throughout the community and provided pictures of landscaping in other 143 

communities.  She explained the entrance to Lancaster, and throughout, should have upgraded 144 

landscaping.   145 

 Ms. Jan _______ stated the landscaping along the roadway does not have color or 146 

anything attractive.  She reported that the trees along Corkscrew have a large gap without trees 147 

and recommended adding landscaping to act as a barrier.   148 

 Mr. Ritschel noted the general fund is budgeted for plant replacements.  Mr. Harland 149 

reported he reviewed the common areas with Mr. Nieder and the landscaping is deteriorating.  150 

He noted the budget currently allocates $28,000, where years ago it was about $300,000.  Dr. 151 

Schwartz noted the golf course looks great but requested additional landscaping.  Mr. Harland 152 

explained the landscaping is paid for by the residents and the golf course is paid for by the 153 

players.  Mr. Ritschel noted the landscape committee meeting is scheduled for tomorrow and on 154 

the agenda. 155 

 Ms. Charlotte West noted areas lacking landscaping and pinestraw.  Mr. Nieder recalled 156 

the loss of plant material in 2007 and discussed watering issues.  In the past, the community had 157 

an abundance of reclaimed water and now the community has to incorporate an aesthetically 158 

pleasing landscaping that is sustainable with the available reclaimed water.  Mr. Nieder 159 

discussed the cost of the mandatory lake bank erosion issue that will apply for the next three (3) 160 

years.  161 

 162 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update:  Discussions with Miromar 163 

Development Regarding Potential 164 

Clubhouse Site 165 
 166 

 Mr. Ritschel discussed the previous events that lead to the District signing a new lease 167 

with TAQ, LLC, for the pro shop, concession area and parking lot, totaling $105,000 per year.   168 

 Mr. Boesch discussed the proposed site plan for moving the clubhouse.  He outlined the 169 

two (2) acres, from the area directly across from CVS, with one (1) acre for 120 parking spots 170 

and the other acre for a new pro shop and small concession area.  The first hole would be on that 171 

side of the road.  Mr. Boesch reported he and Mr. Adams met with Miromar’s VP of Finance and 172 

discussed several options.  They are willing to discuss the available options.  The engineer is 173 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 6 

working on the layout of the area, which would have to be discussed with Ms. Margaret Miller, 174 

the owner.  He did not anticipate any movement by December, rather the beginning of next year.  175 

Discussion followed on the financing options and the need for available funds.   176 

 An audience member noted the potential of acquiring an existing building.  Mr. Adams 177 

clarified that the District is looking at a land lease with Miromar.  Mr. Ritschel discussed the 178 

prior purchase of the current building by TAQ, LLC.  Mr. Adams recalled the meeting with 179 

Miromar in which the financial position of the District and potential development plans for the 180 

property were discussed.  He noted the terms of the land lease need to match up with the 181 

amortization of the building and a site plan is being developed. 182 

 Mr. Ritschel recalled the District is trying to find out the exact property lines.  Mr. Cox 183 

noted Johnson Engineering has all the information and Mr. Ritschel requested the survey be 184 

completed.   185 

 186 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of March 22, 2011 Regular 187 

Meeting Minutes 188 

 189 

Mr. Adams presented the March 22, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes for the Board’s 190 

review and asked for any additions, deletions or corrections.  The following changes were made: 191 

Line 28:  Insert “Sebby” after “Lloyd”  192 

Line 29:  Insert “Chazin” after “Keith” 193 

Line 314: Insert “Chazin” after “Keith” 194 

Line 374:  Change “Keith” to “Lew Frith” 195 

Page 1:  Add “Lew Frith” as a “Resident” 196 

 197 

On MOTION by Mr. Ritschel and seconded by Mr. Brady, 198 

with all in favor, the March 22, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes, 199 

as amended, were approved. 200 

 201 

 202 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 203 

 204 

 Mr. Ritschel recalled prior Board discussion regarding a golfer’s behavior on the golf 205 

course and that an apology letter will be sent to Mr. Charlie Kurczeski.  Mr. Ritschel read the 206 

following:  207 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 7 

“On behalf of the District and Board of Supervisors, I apologize for the 208 

comments that were made at the March 22 meeting.  The intent of the comments 209 

was to establish a framework for discussion among the Board Members regarding 210 

what the Board’s policy would be when faced with inappropriate behavior by 211 

players that hold a membership.  The comments were not intended to embarrass 212 

you personally.  Also attached is a copy of a letter that has been sent to you twice, 213 

which specifically addresses the status of your play privileges at the golf course.  214 

As you can see, your privileges have not been suspended.” 215 

 Mr. Ritschel stated he is going to attempt to get this letter to Mr. Kurczeski, along with a 216 

letter that was twice refused, at his residence.  217 

 Mr. Boesch reported the Finance Committee met and prepared an updated report for 218 

March 2011.  Anticipating a $30,000 payroll reduction, the anticipated fund balance, by 219 

September 30, 2011, minus the reserves, was estimated to be $570,000.   220 

 Discussion followed on the revenues during March.  Mr. Ritschel noted the concession 221 

stand is $16,500 under budget, maintenance crew is $322,000 under budget and pro shop is just 222 

short of $100,000 under budget.  The golf course is operating a little behind in revenues related, 223 

primarily, to greens fees and concession stands.  He reported the April rounds played budget is 224 

167 and, currently, 176 rounds have been played.   225 

 Ms. West asked if the District is paying the interest.  Mr. Ritschel replied the District is 226 

not paying the interest and it is accruing.  Mr. Ritschel reported a bill was received in February, 227 

from the trustee, in the amount of about $24,000.  The District questioned the reasons for the 228 

fees, in which the fees covered numerous years; the District has not responded.  Mr. Ritschel 229 

reported a group is going to a meeting in the governor’s office next Wednesday, relative to the 230 

Chapter 9 bankruptcy filing.  He noted the cash flow projection and the retainer, for Mr. Steve 231 

Berman, is about used.  Discussion followed on potential negotiations with the bondholders and 232 

the existing value of the bonds.   233 

 Mr. Santo Listro, a resident, asked if the Board is considering any reductions to the 234 

budgeted $417,000 loss.  Mr. Ritschel discussed projects that were budgeted but cancelled.  He 235 

noted the personnel issue has not changed and the reductions should continue.  Mr. Ritschel 236 

noted there are eight (8) volunteer rangers.  He discussed the savings from Mr. Harwood’s 237 

absence and suggested additional compensation for Mr. Ross and Ms. Blake.   238 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 8 

 Discussion followed on the completion of the lake bank erosion project.  Mr. Adams 239 

explained the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) considers the District’s plan, 240 

of completing the golf course and District’s lakes in three (3) years, to be aggressive.  He noted 241 

the District has the flexibility to extend the project, if sufficient revenues are not received.   242 

 A resident discussed the membership costs for residents and the process.  Mr. Ritschel 243 

recommended the resident attend a Board meeting in the fall, as the memberships are good thru 244 

September 30, 2011.  He noted the membership play accounts for about 10% of play.  Discussion 245 

followed on the actual cost per round.  A resident noted the average round for March was $48.39, 246 

but the advertised price is about $100 per round.  Mr. Brady noted there are coupons online.  247 

Discussion followed on the rates and the amount charged at certain times of the day.  Mr. Ross 248 

noted the cart fees.  Mr. Rodrigues noted, including the other fees, the cost per round is about 249 

$61.00.  Mr. Ritschel noted the fees are illustrated in three (3) lines consisting of a greens fee, 250 

cart fee and GPS fee.   251 

 Mr. Ritschel stated the Board received an anonymous letter in the mail and read the letter 252 

into the record.  The letter reported after-hour activity on hole 14 by residents and children.  Mr. 253 

Ritschel stated he discussed the issue with Mr. Cox and recalled that the rangers, in the past, 254 

have asked individuals to leave the golf course.  Mr. Ritschel recalled children on the rocks, in 255 

front of the sand trap, fishing balls out of the water with a bucket.  There were people on the 256 

green and Mr. Ritschel was on the tee and informed an adult male that the children should not be 257 

on the course.  The man stated the children were not his and he walked away.  Mr. Ritschel noted 258 

the rangers have to be aware of the activity on that part of the golf course.  259 

 Mr. Lloyd Sebby, a resident, noted this has been an issue for years.  Mr. Ritschel noted 260 

the Master Association has the ability to fine residents.  Discussion followed on the need to call 261 

the sheriff and potential dangers of children around the water.  Mr. Nieder noted he will observe 262 

the hole.   263 

 Mr. Boesch reported the rates were put in the Bella Terra newsletter; however, it was not 264 

an advertisement.   265 

 266 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 267 

 268 

A. Attorney 269 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 9 

Mr. Cox discussed the upcoming meeting in the governor’s office next Wednesday.  Mr. 270 

Ritschel noted the retainer with Mr. Steve Berman is almost gone.  Mr. Cox indicated the initial 271 

retainer was to be considerably more than what the District paid and the balance of the retainer 272 

was to be funded through the post-petition financing.   273 

Mr. Ritschel asked if there was anything that needed to be prepared for the meeting.  Mr. 274 

Cox stated that will be discussed with Mr. Adams and Mr. Berman during Thursday’s conference 275 

call.   276 

B. Engineer 277 

There being no report, the next item followed. 278 

C. Golf Superintendent 279 

Mr. Nieder reported he had a meeting with Occupational Safety and Health 280 

Administration (OSHA) today and a copy of the coroner’s report has not been obtained.  He 281 

stated a surplus equipment sale was completed about a month ago and noted an old rotary mower 282 

was not included.  An individual offered $500 to purchase the mower.  Mr. Adams reported Mr. 283 

Nieder indicated the fair market value is a few hundred dollars, which is about the cost of the 284 

advertisement for the formal surplus sale approach.  Mr. Cox confirmed the amount is below the 285 

statute’s threshold.  286 

 287 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Harland, 288 

with all in favor, approval to bypass the formal surplus 289 

equipment process and accept $500 for a zero turn mower, was 290 

approved. 291 

 292 

 293 

Mr. Nieder stated the first aerification on the new greens will begin in May.  He 294 

discussed finding rocks and concrete throughout the golf course.  The existing matter will be 295 

removed, filled with sand and the existing turf will be replaced.  Mr. Nieder stated the work is 296 

subcontracted and the golf course will be closed on May 12 and 13 for the aerification.  The 297 

other treatments will be completed at the end of June and September.  He explained the treatment 298 

should soften the greens but they will have the same speed.   299 

 Mr. Nieder reported the new greens mowers were delivered and he is preparing a report 300 

as to the options available to address the existing equipment.  He discussed the reasoning for 301 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 10 

outsourcing certain projects, as the aerification, the maintenance and owning of the equipment 302 

does not make financial sense.   303 

 Mr. Nieder stated he is in the process of obtaining quotes to extend the paver path where 304 

the carts are staged.  He asked if the Board would like to address the bridge project that was 305 

scheduled to be completed in September.  Mr. Boesch noted the budget has $18,000 allocated for 306 

the bridge repairs and recommended having the work completed when the course is closed in 307 

May or June.  Mr. Nieder explained the course will be closed in June for the greens aerification 308 

and verticutting of the fairways.  The Board agreed to proceed with the bridge repairs when the 309 

golf course is closed.  310 

 Mr. Ritschel discussed the refurbishment of the granite signs; if the manufacturer is to 311 

refurbish, the sign has to be removed from the ground and shipped to St. Petersburg.  He stated 312 

the entire, tall sign would be $90, including paint and $50 for the small signs, i.e., tee signs.  He 313 

stated the exact number of signs is not known.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that Eileen ________, from 314 

the Master Board, completed an inventory.  There are some areas where they would like the sign 315 

raised, i.e., stop signs or golfers crossings sign.  She also reported a stop sign was missing at the 316 

eighth hole, going across the fairway.  Mr. Ritschel recalled a conversation with Mr. Nieder 317 

where the rangers are patrolling the golf course backwards.  He noted the signs would be 318 

pressure washed, sealed and painted.  Mr. Nieder noted the signs have not been cleaned in a long 319 

time and the golf course does have shotgun tournaments.  Mr. Ritschel stated he will obtain a 320 

quote.  A resident noted the nonexistent center-line on Berwich.  Mr. Ritschel noted the Master 321 

Board painted the streets and crosswalks.   322 

 Mr. Nieder stated he found a company that uses fine ground, recycled oak mulch and 323 

suggested using it as an alternative for preserve areas that are in play.  He stated he will provide 324 

an estimate and anticipated, for the cost of one (1) pinestraw application, he could have three (3) 325 

mulch applications.  Discussion followed on the weed growth in certain areas and the use of 326 

pinestraw.  Mr. Nieder estimated about three (3) semi loads, at 3,600 bales per load, of pinestraw 327 

for the entire golf course. 328 

 Mr. Adams recalled the offer to prune the trees for golf by Mr. Chris Vanderhoef.  He 329 

noted there are 470 cabbage palms on the golf course and Mr. Vanderhoef offered $15 per tree to 330 

trim the tree from 3 to 9, like a clock, and remove all resulting debris, totaling $7,050.  He 331 

offered to prune 235 Washingtonian palm trees the same way, at $25 per tree, totaling $5,875.  332 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 11 

The grand total would be around $13,000 and barter part of the payment to golf and/or donate a 333 

golf membership to a Stoneybrook youth.  Mr. Nieder did not believe the trees needed to be 334 

trimmed.  The provided quotes for the cabbage palms was comparable to previous quotes and the 335 

Washingtonian palms price was lower than any other received quote for trimming.  Mr. Nieder 336 

did not believe the trees needed to be trimmed; however, he will ask Mr. Vanderhoef for a quote 337 

when the trees need to be trimmed.   338 

 Mr. Nieder noted tee 14 has a bad turtleback and recommended laser leveling the tee.  He 339 

stated he will obtain a quote.   340 

 Mr. Adams stated he will thank Mr. Vanderhoef for the generous offer but the District is 341 

not in the position to complete the work at this time.  Mr. Ritschel and Mr. Adams did not 342 

believe it was appropriate to barter services for golf.  Mr. Adams noted Mr. Vanderhoef is a 343 

legitimate and licensed arborist.  The Board was not interested in bartering services.   344 

 Mr. Nieder reported he is having difficulty in meeting with the individual contracted for 345 

the mowing of the ball field and breaking up of the clay.  Mr. Sebby recalled complaints that 346 

were made at the Master Board meeting in which the pitcher’s mound and home plate were not 347 

maintained correctly.  Mr. Ritschel noted the fence by home plate was rolled up.   348 

 Mr. Nieder stated he is in the process of discussing the maintenance of water meters with 349 

contractors.  He reported the golf course is on water restrictions and the water usage has to be 350 

reduced by 15% and the usage has to be reported weekly, online.  The residents can water two 351 

(2) days a week and the residential guidelines have not changed.   352 

 Mr. Nieder reported an existing pump in a recharge well burned out and has been 353 

replaced.   354 

 Discussion followed on potential for golf management services, including Kemper 355 

Sports.  Mr. Ritschel requested Mr. Steve Spaugh, from Crown Colony, be added to the next 356 

meeting agenda for the consideration of a proposal for golf course management.   357 

D. Golf Pro 358 

Mr. Ritschel noted the budget for golf clubs, balls and headwear are under budget but 359 

ladies wear, menswear and shoes are significantly over budget.  The budget is within $500 of 360 

being over budget of the pro shop operations.   361 

E. Manager 362 

i. Unaudited Financial Statements as of March 31, 2011 363 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 12 

Mr. Adams presented the Unaudited Financial Statements as of March 31, 2011 and 364 

noted the assessment collections were at 95%.  Mr. Ritschel noted the escrow account is still 365 

open. 366 

ii. High Irrigation Users’ Report, Period 3/2011 367 

Mr. Adams reported there are 58 individuals on the high user report, for March 2011.   368 

iii. Irrigation Disconnect List, 4/13/2011 369 

Mr. Adams reported there are 48 accounts on the disconnect list; one (1) account was 370 

paid within the last week. 371 

iv. NEXT MEETING DATE: May 24, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. 372 

Mr. Adams noted the next regular Board Meeting is scheduled for May 24, 2011; 373 

however, today’s meeting will be continued. 374 

 375 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment/Supervisors’ 376 

Requests 377 
 378 

 Mr. Lew Frith, a resident, recommended having the volunteer rangers that work during 379 

the evening hours trained by Mr. Lloyd Sebby.  Mr. Ritschel recommended holding another 380 

training session in the morning.  381 

 Mr. Ritschel reminded residents of the Landscape Committee meeting tomorrow, at 4:00 382 

p.m., in the community center’s library.   383 

 Discussion followed on the time of the continued meeting and potential dates for 384 

interviewing the candidates.   385 

 Mr. Nieder stated he will write an article for the June newsletter.  Mr. Ritschel stated he 386 

will provide a golf update. 387 

 388 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Executive Session 389 
 390 

 An executive session was not held. 391 

 392 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 393 

 394 

 The meeting was continued to May 5, 2011 at 1:00 p.m. 395 

 396 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 13 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Brady, with 397 

all in favor, the meeting was continued to May 5, 2011, at 1:00 398 

p.m., at the same location. 399 

 400 

 401 

 402 

 403 

 404 

 405 

 406 

 407 

 408 

 409 

 410 

 411 

 412 

 413 

 414 

 415 

 416 

 417 

 418 

 419 

 420 

 421 

 422 

 423 

 424 

 425 

 426 

 427 

 428 

 429 



STONEYBROOK CDD  April 26, 2011 

 14 

 430 

 431 

 432 

 433 

 434 

____________________________   ____________________________ 435 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 436 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

STONEYBROOK 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 

 A Continued Meeting of the Stoneybrook Community Development District’s Board of 5 

Supervisors was held on Thursday, May 5, 2011 at 1:00 p.m., at the Stoneybrook Community 6 

Center, 11800 Stoneybrook Golf Boulevard, Estero, Florida 33928. 7 

 8 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

 10 
Ron Ritschel Chair 11 

Chris Brady (via telephone) Vice Chair 12 

James Boesch  Assistant Secretary 13 

Ray Rodrigues Assistant Secretary 14 

Ed Harland Assistant Secretary 15 

 16 

Also present were: 17 

 18 
Chuck Adams District Manager 19 

Matt Nieder Golf Superintendent 20 

Merrily Baker Golf Pro Screening Committee 21 

Bob _______ Resident 22 

Peter Austin Resident 23 

John Blakely Master Board Association 24 

 25 

 26 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 27 
 28 

 Mr. Adams called the meeting to order at 1:07 p.m., and noted Supervisors Ritschel, 29 

Boesch, Rodrigues and Harland were present, in person.  Supervisor Brady was not present at 30 

Roll Call.   31 

 32 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Dates and Times for 33 

Presentations/Interviews with Candidates 34 

 35 

 ***This item, previously the Third Order of Business, was discussed out of order.*** 36 

 The Board discussed possible dates/times for presentations/interviews with candidates.  37 

The Board set Tuesday, May 17, 2011, and Wednesday, May 18, 2011.  The Board deferred 38 

setting a time to later in the meeting.   39 

 40 



STONEYBROOK CDD  May 5, 2011 

 2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Head Golf Pro Shortlist 41 

Determined by Resume Screening 42 

Committee 43 
 44 

***This item, previously the Second Order of Business, was discussed out of order.*** 45 

 Ms. Merrily Baker, on behalf of the Head Pro Screening Committee, provided a final 46 

report, detailing the finalists, to the Board.  She noted the very difficult process of determining 47 

five (5) candidates.  The Committee spent last week discussing the references of all candidates 48 

and the recommended five (5) candidates that are in a class by themselves.  The five (5) 49 

candidates are Robert Biroscak, Chuck Kandt, Jeff Nixon, Brian Wasser and Scott Womble.   50 

 Ms. Baker reviewed the report and thanked the committee for their professionalism and 51 

work.   52 

 Mr. Ritschel, referring to Mr. Brian Wasser, questioned what CFM represented.  Mr. 53 

Adams confirmed it is a community in Fort Myers.  54 

 The Board thanked the committee for their work.   55 

 Ms. Baker confirmed that Mr. Murray and Mr. Bowling found jobs.  She explained there 56 

were a number of candidates that lost their jobs simply because a new Board was elected or a 57 

management firm was hired.  Discussion followed on the specific comments of the candidates.  58 

Ms. Baker discussed comments made by Mr. Nixon’s references. 59 

 Ms. Baker explained there was a total of 15 candidates and each member called for 60 

references of three (3) candidates.  She explained the final list was compiled by the collective 61 

committee opinion.  Mr. Rodrigues thanked the committee for their work and the need to have a 62 

better relationship between the head pro and the community.   63 

 Ms. Baker recalled the Board’s possible decision to hire a management/consulting firm 64 

for the golf course.  65 

 Mr. Ritschel explained that the Board was contacted by Kemper Sports, regarding hiring 66 

a golf management firm.  He explained they requested the golf course financial statements but 67 

Mr. Ritschel has not provided them.  Mr. Ritschel recalled a gentleman called the community 68 

center and wrote a letter to him.  He noted two (2) other solicited inputs were received.  69 

Ms. Baker noted the approach to running the operation as PGA’s professionals is 70 

different than a management firm’s approach.   71 

Mr. Ritschel noted the Board did not request or initiate the solicitation.  Discussion 72 

followed on the fees associated with the hiring of a golf course management firm.   73 



STONEYBROOK CDD  May 5, 2011 

 3 

 Mr. Ritschel stated it is something the Board needs to consider.  Mr. Rodrigues believed 74 

the golf course was not well served with the prior golf management company and did not believe 75 

it was the appropriate model.  He did not believe the golf course could afford a management 76 

company but he is willing to listen to someone who believes they can better the golf course.  Mr. 77 

Rodrigues noted the Board needs to determine if the new golf pro would have the same 78 

administrative duties as the prior golf pro.   79 

 Mr. Ritschel discussed how Mr. Josh Ross and Ms. Tricia Blake worked to keep the golf 80 

course running.  He noted Mr. Ross obtained the license for food service.  Mr. Ritschel stated the 81 

use of delegation will assist with some tasks.   82 

 Ms. Baker noted the potential candidates excel at hiring and training staff.  Mr. Harland 83 

did not recommend hiring a firm for golf management purposes.  84 

 Mr. Ritschel noted Wrathell, Hunt & Associates, LLC, is completing the accounting 85 

tasks, for a reasonable amount.   86 

 Ms. Baker stated she will complete the salary survey, via email, within the next few days. 87 

 88 

On MOTION by Mr. Rodrigues and seconded by Mr. 89 

Harland, with all in favor, the Head Golf Pro report, as 90 

presented by the Resume Screening Committee, was approved. 91 

 92 

 93 

 Ms. Baker discussed the difference between a head pro of a private club and a head pro of 94 

a public course.  Mr. Ritschel discussed the play of the golf course.  Ms. Baker noted the 95 

potential marketing aspects of the golf course in the community. 96 

 97 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration/Approval of List of 98 

Preparation Items to be Communicated 99 

to Candidates for 100 

Presentations/Interviews 101 
 102 

 Mr. Ritschel reviewed the list of items for the candidates’ presentations/interviews.  Ms. 103 

Baker noted she asked the candidates what they believed to be their greatest challenge, if 104 

employed at Stoneybrook Golf Course.   105 

 Mr. Adams asked for any edits to the list of questions.   106 

Discussion was held on the possibility of the Master Board changing their meeting on 107 

May 17, 2011.   108 



STONEYBROOK CDD  May 5, 2011 

 4 

Mr. Ritschel recalled the meeting in the governor’s office, with Ms. Pam Pfeifer and Mr. 109 

Ronald Baker.  He stated Mr. Adams, Mr. Cox, Mr. Berman, Ms. Trudy Williams and himself 110 

attended the meeting.  He recalled stressing that Stoneybrook is a daily fee, public golf course.  111 

Ms. Baker inquired as to the process of Chapter 9 bankruptcy, as there were only six (6) Chapter 112 

9 bankruptcies.  Mr. Ritschel noted the golf course notified the State of Florida, since 2007, it is 113 

in a condition of financial emergency.  During the meeting, Mr. Cox discussed the general 114 

economy in Southwest Florida and Mr. Cox spent some time talking about the proforma 115 

completed by the National Golf Foundation, in 1998, on behalf of US Homes.   116 

***Mr. Chris Brady joined the meeting.*** 117 

 Mr. Ritschel explained that Mr. Berman noted the District was ready to file for 118 

bankruptcy in September 2010, until the letter was received from the governor’s office, and 119 

made it clear the bonds were only on the public golf course.  He continued outlining the details 120 

of the meeting and that Mr. Cox was to send a follow-up letter.   121 

Discussion followed on surrounding golf courses and that no CDD has filed bankruptcy.   122 

 The Board discussed available dates to interview candidates.   123 

 The interview dates were set for Tuesday, May 17, 2011, with three (3) time slots 124 

available: 9:00 a.m., 10:00 a.m., and 11:00 a.m.  Wednesday, May 18, 2011 will have two (2) 125 

time slots available: 6:00 p.m., and 7:00 p.m. 126 

  127 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments/Supervisors’ 128 

Requests 129 

 130 

 Mr. Nieder reported TruGreen began redoing the annual plantings and he has a meeting 131 

with their management tomorrow.  132 

 133 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 134 

 135 
  136 

On MOTION by Mr. Rodrigues and seconded by Mr. Ritschel, 137 

with all in favor, the meeting adjourned at 2:27 p.m. 138 

139 



STONEYBROOK CDD  May 5, 2011 

 5 

 140 

 141 

 142 

 143 

 144 

 145 

 146 

____________________________   ____________________________ 147 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 148 











STONEYBROOK CDD  5/11/2011  
TO: MATT/TERESA   
FROM: ANA VIVIAN   

UPDATED  LIST  FOR IRRIGATION WATER DISCONNECTED

NAME  ADDRESS METER ACCT # AMOUNT
   

TUYLS 11512 AUSTIN KEANE CT W86626783 770-0007-01 $323.36
FISHER 11520 AUSTIN KEANE CT W86626742 770-0011-01 $78.90
WILLIAMS 21612 BELHAVEN WAY W86626409 770-0065-01 $164.95
ANDOLO 21538 BERWHICH RUN W86626528 770-0102-01 $634.56
SCHULER 21596 BERWHICH RUN W86626475 770-0126-01 $338.52
PALKOVIC 21667 BERWHICH RUN W86626468 770-0152-01 $90.24
MARCHETTI 21159 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626237 770-0170-01 $422.15
ROMAN 21192 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626253 770-0186-01 $160.67
DAVIS 21211 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626302 770-0195-01 $331.84
RICHARD 21227 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626269 770-0203-01 $289.56
LONG 21232 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626271 770-0205-01 $250.83
RIELLY 21251 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626255 770-0211-01 $284.45
 TROESTER 21252 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626258 770-0212-02 $241.65
ONEWEST BANK FSB 21269 BRAXFIELD LOOP W86626262 770-0216-02 $208.42
SHALABI 21556 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626862 770-0257-03 $223.82
DRAKOS 21625 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626710 770-0282-01 $192.09
LAFLEUR 21649 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626752 770-0292-01 $121.48
Carr 21659 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626775 770-0297-01 $85.82
BURTON 21675 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626715 770-0304-01 $118.32
EVERETT 21703 BRIXHAM RUN LOOP W86626728 770-0317-01 $106.29
DOUGLAS/DEWITT 21641 HELMSDALE RUN W86626864 770-0370-01 $200.31
SEGO 21515 LAN GHOLM RUN W86626538 770-0687-01 $306.88
BURGESS 21422 SHERIDAN RUN W86626580 770-0835-01 $234.17
WINNING 21425 SHERIDAN RUN W86626579 770-0836-01 $147.59
BELLANTI 21457 SHERIDAN RUN W86626653 770-0852-01 $216.01
CORTES 11369 STRATHAM LOOP W86626328 770-0880-01 $172.57
US BK NA TRUSTEE 11385 STRATHAM LOOP W86626692 770-0886-02 $414.48
MCCOMBS 21208 WAYMOUTH RUN W86626340 770-0917-01 $101.78
SCHILLER 21221 WAYMOUTH RUN W86626308 770-0924-01 $105.81



NAME ADDRESS  METER ACCT# AMOUNT

CAVASENO 21278 WAYMOUTH RUN W86626869 770-0948-01 $121.89
MONTUFAR 21576 WINDHAM RUN W86424019 770-0990-01 $264.86
AUVIL 21580 WINDHAM RUN W86424006 770-0992-02 $121.47
ZOLA 21600 WINDHAM RUN W86423997 770-1001-01 $401.66
WELLS FARGO BANK 21612 WINDHAM RUN W86424010 770-1007-02 $123.86
DAVIS 21645 WINDHAM RUN W86424055 770-1024-01 $145.15
Major/Belisle 21707 WINDHAM RUN w86424093 770-1053-01 $117.46
LUCAS 11520 WOODMOUNT LANE W86626759 770-1073-01 $158.76
GAMBIRAZIO 11533 WOODMOUNT LANE W86626816 770-1080-01 $108.04
MALOOLY 11538 WOODMOUNT LANE W86626818 770-1083-01 $389.98





Wrathell Hunt and Associates, LLC 
6131 Lyons Rd., Suite 100 

Coconut Creek, FL  33073 
 

Lee County – Community Development Districts    04/21/2011 
 

 

 
PCT. 

 
NAME OF CDD 

 
# REG. VOTERS 

132-1 
147-1 
148-1 

 
Bayside Improvement CDD 

 
2190 

 

148-2 Bay Creek CDD 715 

149 Beach Road Estates -00- 

149 Beach Road Golf Estates -00- 

132-2 Brooks of Bonita Springs 1842 

132-3 Brooks of Bonita Springs II 1295 

149 East Bonita Beach -00- 

149-2 Mediterra North 209 

128-4 Miromar Lakes 739 

030-1 Moody River Estates 407 

149-4 Parklands West 401 

149-6 Parklands/Lee 223 

012-1 River Ridge CDD 1133 

167-1 Stoneybrook CDD 1395 

152-?? Verandah East 81 

152-2 Verandah West 558 

009-1 Waterford Landing CDD -00- 

Paper copy will follow via US Mail. 

Nancy Tighe – Voice: 239/533-6302 

email: ntighe@leeelections.com 

Send to:  Daphne Gillyard gillyardd@whhassociates.com 

Cc:  bfeliciano@leeelections.com 

mailto:gillyardd@whhassociates.com



